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Jaron Brignac
16450 Palomino PL, #204
Canyon Country, CA 91604

Plaintiff in pro se

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CV 16 02030”5%[%

JARON BRIGNAC, an individual,

Plaintiff,

vs COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

EMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
TRUEACCORD CORP, a California ® )

Corporation; YELP INC., a Delaware
Corporation doing business in California; and
DOES 1 through 10 inclusive,

Defendants.

Plaintiff, Jaron Brignac, as and for his complaint against Defendants TRUEACCORD
CORP,, and YELP INC, alleges as follows:
INTRODUCTION
1. This is an action for damages brought by an individual consumer for
Defendants violating the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 1 USC, Sec. 1692, and
the Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practice Act, Cal. Civ. Code, Sec. 1788, which

prohibits debt collectors and creditors from engaging in abusive, deceptive and unfair
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practices. Plaintiff also alleges violations of the California Business and Professions
Code, Sec. 17200.
PARTIES

2. Plaintiff is a natural person residing in Los Angeles, California.

3. Upon information and belief, the Defendant TRUEACCORD CORP., isa
“debt collector” as defined pursuant to 15 U.S.C Sec.1692a(6) with its principal place
of business in San Francisco, California.

4. Upon information and belief, the Defendant YELP INC., is a “corporation”
and is a “creditor” as defined pursuant to Cal. Civ. Code Sec. 1788.2 with its principal
place of business in San Francisco, California

JURISDICTION

5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1692k (FDCPA) and 28
U.S.C. Sec. 1331. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sec. 1391 (c),
as the Defendant corporations reside and regularly conduct business in this district.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

6. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 5 below herein

7. A personal debt was allegedly incurred by Plaintiff to Yelp Inc.

8. That at a time unknown to Plaintiff herein, the aforementioned debt was
referred and/or assigned to TRUEACCORD CORP.

Count One
9. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 8 below herein
10. That Defendant TRUEACCORD CORP., e-mailed numerous notices to

Plaintiff in an attempt to collect the aforementioned debt.
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11. Said notices were intentionally deceptive which read on the email subject lines,
in pertinent part, but not limited to:

“Life can be a beach”

Afterwards, upon opening the email, the body of email stated:

“But until you settle up this balance, things are anything but beachy. We've

given you ample opportunities to take care of this balance, but you have taken

no action. Lift the burden off your shoulders, take care of this debt and life will
be beachy again”

“Are you just slacking!? Stop that. This is serious business. If you don't handle

your debt to Yelp, it could have a long-term effect on your financial standing.

Trust me, itfs not worth it.”

12. Defendant’s use of false, deceptive, misleading and overshadowing language,
is confusing the Plaintiff as to his rights. It contains false statements and threats of
action that cannot legally be taken or that are not actually intended to be taken and are
designed to coerce payment under duress.

Count Two

13. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation set forth above in
paragraphs 1 through 12 as if reasserted and re-alleged herein.

14. That upon information and belief, That Defendant TRUEACCORD CORP.,
has attempted to collect on amounts that are not authorized by agreement or permitted
by law.

15. That That Defendant TRUEACCORD CORP.,, in an attempt to collect a debt,

engages in a pattern of practice of communicating with consumers where the
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representations made by the Defendant are confusing, misleading, deceptive and/or
unfair.

16. That as a result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff has suffered damages which
include, but are not limited to, statutory damages, any actual damages sustained, other
resulting monetary losses and damages, unnecessary stress, aggravation and anxiety.

17. That Defendant’s conduct violates 15 U.S.C 1692, including but not limited to
subsections (e), (f), and (g) in that the representations made by the Defendants are
confusing, misleading, deceptive, harassing, unfair and fail to advise the consumer of
her legal rights as required by law.

a. Defendant has violated 1692¢ by using false representations and employing

deceptive and misleading means in an attempt to collect a debt;

b. Defendant has violated 1692f by using unfair and unconscionable means to

collect or attempt to collect a debt; and

c. Defendant has violated 1692g by using misleading and overshadowing

language in an attempt to collect the alleged debt and by contradicting

Plaintiff’s rights.

18.  That as per 15 USC Sec., 1692, and as result of the above violations,
the Defendant is liable to the Plaintiff for actual damages and statutory damages in an
amount to be determined at the time of trial but not less than $1,000.00 per violation,

plus cost and attorney’s fees.

e
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Rosenthal Act. Such damages include, without limitation, statutory damages, any
actual damages sustained, other resulting monetary losses and damages, and emotional
distress suffered by Plaintiff, which damages are in an amount to be proven at trial.

24. In addition, because the Defendant’s violations of the Rosenthal Act were
committed willingly and knowingly, Plaintiff is entitled to recover, in addition to his
actual damages, penalties of at least $1,000 per violation as provided for in the Act.

25. According to section 1788.30(c) Rosenthal Act, Plaintiff is entitled to recover
all attorneys’ fees, cost and expenses incurred in the bringing of this action.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

26. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 25 as if fully restated herein

27. The California Business and Professions Code, section 17200, prohibits unfair
competition, which includes any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act.

28. That Defendants, by engaging the acts hereinabove described, has committed
violations under FDCPA, that said acts are therefore per se violations of the California
Business and Professions Code Section 17200.

29, That the harm caused by the Defendant’s conduct outweighs any benefits that
Defendants conduct may have.

30. That consumers are likely to be deceived, and that Plaintiff was in fact
deceived, by Defendant’s conduct.

31. That Defendants have been unjustly enriched by committing said acts.

32. That as a result of the Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff has been harmed and has
suffered damages in the form of monetary losses, extreme embarrassment,

humiliation, shame, stress, anxiety, aggravation and sleepless nights.

J
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33. That as a direct proximate result of Defendant’s unlawful, unfair and
fraudulent business practices as alleged herein, Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and
lost money and/or property.

34. Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code section 17200, Plaintiff

is entitled to recover her actual damages and restitution.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays that judgment be entered against Defendants in
the amount of:
(@ Statutory damages and actual damages pursuant to 15 USC sec. 1692k in an
amount to be determined at the time of trial on the first cause of action.
(b)  Statutory damages and actual damages pursuant to Civil Code section 1788.30
as to the second cause of action.
(¢)  Damages and restitution pursuant to the California Business and Professions
Code section 17200 as to the third cause of action.
(d)  Cost and reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 15 USC section 1692k and
Civil Code section 1788.30
(e)  For such other and further relief as may be just and proper.

® Plaintiff requests trial by jury on all issues so triable.

Dated: 5/9 7/ 2016

Respectfully Submitted

é/ﬁzh w@%zwﬁ

Jaron Brignac”™
Plaintiff
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